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51331 W. Pontiac Trail, Wixom, Ml 48393 248.486.5100 Main 248.486.5050 Fax 

October 14, 2015 

Mr. John B. Giessner, Director 
Division of Nuclear Materials Safety 
U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission-Region Ill 
2443 Warrenville Road, Suite 210 
Lisle, IL 60532-4352 

RE: Response to the Apparent Violation 
Inspection Report No.: 03012040/2015001 (DNMS); EA-15-157 
CTI and Associates, Inc. 
License No.: 21-17007-01 

Dear Mr. Giessner: 

As requested, CTI and Associates, Inc. (CTI) is providing a written response to the above 
referenced apparent violation before the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) makes an 
enforcement decision. The contents of this letter for your review include: 

(1) The reason for the apparent violation 
(2) The corrective steps that have been taken and results achieved 
(3) The corrective steps that have been taken to avoid further violations 
(4) The date when full compliance was or will be achieved. 

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this response. If you have any questions, or if you 
require additional information, please do not hesitate to contact our office at (248) 486-5100. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

CTI & Associates, Inc. 

~ 
Elizabeth A. Taylor, P.E. 
Senior Project Manager 

cc: Mr. Aaron T. Mccraw; Chief-Materials Inspection Branch Division of Nuclear Materials Safety 
Mr. Ryan Craffey; Health Physicist-Materials Inspection Branch 

Attachments: Written Response to Inspection Report No.: 03012040/2015001 (DNMS) 
Nuclear Density Gauge Safety Employee Handout 
Safety Meeting Employee Sign-in Sheet 
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1.0 Reason for the Apparent Violation 
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The apparent violation was discovered on July 23, 2015 during an inspection of CTI and 
Associates, Inc. (CTI} by a Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC} representative. The inspection 
took place at one of CTl's jobsites at the Detroit Metropolitan Wayne County Airport in Romulus, 
Ml, a publicly accessible location. The inspector reported an apparent violation of CTl's NRC 
Materials license No. 21-17007-01 which grants permission to CTI to use and store portable 
moisture density gauges. The cited apparent violation of Title 10 CFR Part 30.34(i} by CTI was 
reported as failure to use a minimum of two independent physical controls that form tangible 
barriers to secure portable gauges from unauthorized removal, whenever portable gauges are 
not under the control and constant surveillance of the licensee. 

At the time of the inspection, CTI was temporarily storing as many as four (4) portable moisture
density gauges onsite at the Detroit Metro Airport in the contractor's portable shipping 
container. All gauges were stored in approved locked cases acting as the first tangible barrier. 
However, the contractor preferred the shipping container remain unlocked meaning the 
container could not act as a physical control to form the second tangible barrier. In order to 
comply with Title 10 CFR Part 30.34(i}, CTI used chains and locks to secure the gauges' locked 
containers to mounting points inside the shipping container, thus forming a second tangible 
barrier to public access. On the day of the inspection three of the four gauges were in use by 
certified operators. The fourth portable moisture density gauge was being stored inside the 
shipping container inside an approved, locked container, but was not locked and chained to the 
inside of the shipping container. Chains used onsite were shared among CTI employees and 
routinely transported with in-use gauges in case two tangible barriers were warranted while in 
the field. The chain needed to secure the stored gauge inside the shipping container was not put 
back in its designated location at the time of the inspection and was not available to act as the 
second physical control. During the inspection, the apparent violation was corrected and 
approved by the NRC inspector by locating the missing chain and appropriately locking the stored 
gauge inside the shipping container. 

2.0 Corrective Actions to Apparent Violation 

Two corrective actions have been taken by CTI to directly resolve the apparent violation 
explained in the previous section: providing extra chains and steel cables at the jobsite to ensure 
at least four chains or cables remain with the stored gauges regardless of the number of gauges 
in use; and the requisition and use of two construction trailers solely for use by CTI that remain 
locked when gauges are being stored inside. CTl's Radiation Safety Officer (RSO) also participated 
in an inspection exit meeting on August 25, 2015 at which time the RSO acknowledged the 
apparent violation and discussed the reason for the apparent violation and possible corrective 
actions was discussed with the NRC. 
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Four (4) additional steel chains or cables and four (4) additional locks have been delivered to the 
Detroit Metro Airportjobsite. These chains/cables and locks only reside inside CTl's construction 
trailer. The four chain and lock sets already in use at the site at the time of inspection can be 
transported with the portable moisture density gauges when in use to ensure there are at least 
two tangible barriers to CTl's gauges, regardless of the number being stored or in use. 

CTI has placed and is using two of their own construction trailers for storage of their portable 
moisture density gauges being used onsite instead of the contractor's portable shipping 
container. These trailers were placed on-site on September 17, 2015 and October 1, 2015. The 
construction trailers are locked whenever gauges are stored inside and only certified gauge 
operators have the keys to the trailers. While being stored, the gauges also reside in their 
approved locked cases and are physically locked to mounting points inside the construction 
trailer. The use of three (3) physical controls to act as tangible barriers was implemented for 
redundancy to ensure the apparent violation is not repeated. 

3.0 Corrective Action to Avoid Further Violations 

CTI determined that the root cause for the apparent violation described above was a 
misunderstanding of the NRC regulatory requirements for portable moisture density gauges by 
CTl's certified operators. CTI acknowledges that all of CTl's certified gauge operators must 
comply with Title 10 CFR Part 30.34{i). To avoid further violations, CTI held a special meeting on 
August 6, 2015 to discuss the apparent violation and gauge safety measures were reviewed to 
ensure employee safety and compliance with CTl's NRC Materials License No. 21-17007-01 by all 
certified gauge operators. A "Nuclear Density Gauge Safety" handout was also provided to all 
employees as a reference to what was discussed at the meeting. This handout along with the 
sign-in sheet for the August safety meeting can be found as attachments to this letter. 

4.0 Date of Full Compliance 

Full compliance with Title 10 CFR Part 30.34{i) was achieved on August 6, 2015 by CTI at which 
time portable moisture density gauge safety was reviewed with all of CTl's employed, certified 
gauge operators and four (4) extra locks and steel chains or cables were put into use in the 
contractor's shipping container at the Detroit Metro Airport jobsite. CTl's additional corrective 
action to use and lock their own construction trailers for stored gauge security became effective 
on September 17, 2015 with an additional trailer added on October 1, 2015. 
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5.0 Summary 

J I. 
= = -
5 ~ 

On July 23, 2015, CTI was cited, during an inspection by the NRC, an apparent violation for failure 
to comply with Title 10 CFR Part 30.34(i) and use a minimum of two independent physical controls 
that form tangible barriers to secure portable gauges from unauthorized removal, whenever 
portable gauges are not under the control and constant surveillance of the licensee. 

CTI had a strategy in place to use two (2) independent physical controls to form tangible barriers 
from removal by unauthorized portable moisture density gauge users by storing gauges at their 
Detroit Metro Airport jobsite in locked containers chained and locked to the inside of a portable 
shipping container. Upon inspection, it was found that the plan is not always effective because 
the chains required for this plan to work are not always available to adequately store gauges. 
Review of this apparent violation has spurred CTI to provide corrective action for this and any 
possible future violations. 

In order to correct the apparent violation, CTI has provided four extra chain or cables and locks, 
and two personal, lockable construction trailers to the Detroit Metro Airport jobsite. This allows 
CTI to store gauges in the construction trailers which can be locked with keys only given to CTl's 
certified gauge operators. The extra chains and locks ensures that each of the four gauges at the 
jobsite can be secured to the inside of the construction trailer even if all four of the original chains 
are being used in the field. Including each gauges' locked case, CTI has provided three (3) 
independent controls to act as tangible barriers for redundancy to ensure adherence to Title 10 
CFR Part 30.34(i). 

CTI also reviewed portable moisture density gauge safety and the apparent violation at its 
monthly safety meeting with its licensed gauge operators to ensure compliance in the future. A 
gauge safety handout was provided as a reference to employees. This handout and the safety 
meeting sign-in sheet are attached to this letter for use by the NRC to ensure. 

The date of full compliance after corrective action of the apparent violation was August 6, 2015. 
The first construction trailer was put into use on September 17, 2015. 

CTI acknowledges the apparent violation and is submitting this letter for NRC review before an 
enforcement decision is made. 
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Safety Meeting Employee Sign-in Sheet 

SIGN-IN ATTENDANCE SHEET 
N\Kfear DeMity Gauge Security Training 
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